2N° SHORTENED PETITION FOR REVIEW 

ORDERS FOR REVIEW APPEAR IN APPENDIXES 

1. Appendix 1 To Petition For Review Containing Orders In COA 38243-1-
11 To Be Reviewed 
• 6/15/2010 In COA 38243-1-II"A Ruling Signed By The Clerk" 
• 6/30/2010 In COA 38243-1-11- Clerk's Letter 4 
• 6/30/2010 In COA 38243-1-II"Order Denying Motions And 

Accepting Overlength Brief 5 
• 6/20/2010 In COA 38243-1-II"A Ruling Signed By The Clerk" 
• 8/4/2010 In COA 38243-1-11- Clerk's Letter 7 
• 8/4/2010 In COA 38243-1-11- Clerk's Letter 8 
• 9/23/2010 In COA 38243-1-II"Order Denying Motion To Modify" 
• 10/1/2010 In COA 38243-1-II"Ruling Denying Motion Of The 

Merits To Affirm Without Oral Argument" 10

STATEMENT OF FACTS 

In 1997, widow Dorothy P. Mettle, while in unchallenged good 

health, executed a Will (CP 212- 215) and revocable living trust 

(Appendix 10 in Supreme Ct 91074-0, Appendix 39 in COA 44244-2-11), 

which appointed Guy as her personal representative and trustee. 

Dorothy's Will was a pour over will bequeathing her residence and 

personal effects (CP 227- 231) to her revocable living trust. Dorothy's 

trust contained about $900,000 and consisted of a brokerage account at 

Merrill Lynch and a brokerage account at Charles Schwab, (CP 3- 15). 

The trust bequeathed everything in equal shares to her three sons, 

Gregg, John, and Guy. 

Dorothy died in December 2002. Then, Gregg claimed to have a 

change to the will which appointed Gregg to replace Guy as the personal 

representative. In 2008, six years after Dorothy's death, Gregg claimed 

to have an amendment to the Trust with appointed Gregg to replace Guy 

as the trustee. However, However, Gregg never presented the 

amendment in court, so Gregg is a self-proclaimed replacement trustee. 

In 2008, Gregg filed the first trust accounting (CP 3- 5). Footnote #3 in 

the accounting revealed that Dorothy's Charles Schwab account was 

missing $50,000, because it contained only $12,368.25. Back in year 
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2000, Guy personally witnessed that the Charles Schwab account 

contained over $62,000 and that Dorothy froze the account to prevent 

Gregg from manipulating it. So self-proclaimed trustee Gregg stole 

$50,000, which is still missing. For 13 years (2002- 2015), Gregg has 

refused to reveal the initial balance in the account and to back it up with 

bank statements, because that would prove Gregg's theft and perjury, 

which has been the central point of this case for 13 years.( COA 38243-1-

11, COA 38603-8-11, COA 38733-6-11, COA 41463-5-11, COA 42213-1-11, COA 

44244-2-11, Supreme Ct #84705-3, Supreme Ct #84648-1, Supreme Ct 

#85871-3, and Supreme Ct #86961-8.) 

On 10/26/2012, Superior Court approved a final accounting for 

the trust. {CP 1751-1754.) On 6/24/2014, COA 44244-2-II"Unpublished 

Opinion" denied all of beneficiary Guy's request for relief. On 

11/03/2014, COA 44244-2-11 order denied Guy's motion to publish. The 

Supreme Court never granted an interlocutory review 

LIST OF ISSUES 

ISSUE- [1] Does A Beneficiary Have A Constitutional Right and 

fundamental liberty to Inheritance? [2] Were delays in distribution 

{2002-2008, and 2002-2015) a violation of beneficiaries' constitutional 

rights? [3]1s the trustee's extended litigation such a violation? [4] Does 
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indigent beneficiary have a constitutional right to waiver of court fees 

and costs? [5] What other beneficiary rights are affected by this 

constitutional right? [6] Do nonresident aliens have more constitutional 

rights than U.S. citizens, for example does the nonresident alien have a 

constitutional right to inheritance while a U.S. citizen does not? 

ISSUE- [7] Are beneficiaries entitled to proof of how much money was in 

a testamentary trust when the trustee took control of the trust? [8] Does 

a beneficiary of have the right to inspect the subject matter, accounts, 

and vouchers of a testamentary trust, including professional accounting 

paid for by the trust? 

ISSUE- [9] Does RCW 11.48.10 requirement to "settle the estate as 

rapidly and as quickly as possible," apply to testamentary trusts (RCW 

11.02.005{10) ? [10] Was it extortion for trustee to withhold 

distributions for years {2002-2008) while demanding that beneficiaries 

sign a waiver of liability for the trustee? [11] Particularly so, when trustee 

secretly stole $50,000 from the trust? 

ISSUE- [12] Should the estate/trust bear the cost of litigation that is 

intended to benefit all of the beneficiaries? [13] Should the estate/trust 

pay litigation costs of the beneficiaries as they occur? [14] Can the 
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Superior court tax beneficiaries with the trustee's attorney fees after 

they were denied by appellate courts during appeal? 

ISSUE- [15 Does GR 34 apply to indigent beneficiaries? Is receipt of food 

stamps solely sufficient to waive court fees? [16] Is income less than 

125% of federal poverty level? Is Guy to be refunded Court fees and 

costs since Guy's applications for indigency in Superior Court and COA? 

ISSUE- [17] Should a self proclaimed replacement trustee {Gregg) be 

removed because he never filed documentation that he is the 

replacement trustee? [18] Should a trustee as antagonistic as Gregg 

towards beneficiary Guy be replaced? For 15 years {2000- 2015), 

trustee Gregg only communicates through attorneys, hid his address, and 

has not been seen by beneficiary Guy. [19] Is that reason to replace self

proclaimed trustee Gregg? 

ISSUE- [20] Can the court grant a motion for an overlength brief, and 

then limit the length of brief? [21] Without explaining cause for the new 

length limitation? 

ISSUE- [22] When can a beneficiary present Interlocutory Issues to the 

Supreme Court? It has been 13 years without a terminating case. 

ISSUE- [23] Can the trustee refuse to provide annual accounting (for 6 

years) by claiming there was no activity in the trust? [24] Even though 
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$50,000 is missing from the trust? [25] Is the burden of proof on the 

trustee to prove his claimed inactivity? 

ISSUE- [26] Does the beneficiary have to commence a separate judicial 

proceeding in order to conduct discovery? [27] Must cause be shown 

for discovery? 

ISSUE- [28] Does the act of appeal give the appellant unclean hands? 

[29] Is the trustee obligated to implement interlocutory court orders? 

[30] Can a party subject to a court order refrain from implementing the 

court order indefinitely, or forever, just because order did not contain a 

deadline date for implementation? 

ISSUE- [31] Can the court force a party to withdraw a motion over the 

moving party's objections? [32] When doing so, is the Court declaring a 

nonsuit? Do nonsuit criteria apply? [33] Must moving party's request for 

relief be fulfilled before the court can force withdrawal of a motion? [34) 

Is the burden of proof of nonsuit on the opposing party that seeks to 

force a motion to be withdrawn against the moving party's wishes? [35] 

On appeal of the forced withdrawal of a motion, does the Appellant 

Court have to assume the moving party's statements are true? [36] Can 

the moving party raise new facts on appeal? [37] Is an opposing party's 

request to force the withdrawal of a motion the same as a motion for 
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summary judgment? [38] Must the court recognize that the opposing 

party waived his right to nonsuit defense? 

ISSUE- [39] Is the Second Step of The Lodestar Method required before 

approving attorney fees? Can fee statements be stripped of all 

information needed to conduct a lodestar analysis? [40] Can line item 

descriptions be redacted from fee statements? [41] Must trustee's 

attorney fees be returned to the trust when denied by the court? 

ISSUE- [42] Does the PR/Trustee have standing to oppose a beneficiary's 

petition for indigency status? [434] Must attorney fees for said 

opposition be returned to the trust? 

ISSUE- [44) Are the estate and the trust separate and distinct legal 

entities? [45] Is the estate required to provide a separate accounting 

from the trust, and vice versa? [46] Do estate attorney fees have to be 

separated from trust attorney fees for lodestar analysis and payment? 

ISSUE- [47) Is it unconstitutional and unequal protection under the law 

(14th Amendment) to pay trustee's legal expenses and not to pay equal 

fees per hour to an indigent beneficiary forced to litigate prose to 

defend his inheritance? [48] How is the prose beneficiary to be 

compensated for 13 years of litigation, pain, suffering, emotional distress, 

foregoing a career and family time in order to litigate a defense of his 
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stolen inheritance? [49] What damages and compensation accrue to 

beneficiaries' children deprived of parental attention and a better 

lifestyle due to trustee's failure to distribute inheritance resulting in 13 

years of litigation? 

ISSUE- [SO] Should the PR/Trustee pay prejudgment interest to the 

beneficiaries in this 13-year case? [51] Post judgment interest? 

ISSUE- [52] Do the trustee, his attorneys, and the judges comprise a 

racketeering gang that steal from estates and fleece beneficiaries? [53] 

Has this case been a 13-year cover-up of a $50,000 theft by said gang? 

[54] Should treble damages be imposed for Criminal Profiteering? [55] 

How can the gang be stopped, and emulation by others prevented? [56] 

How do CR 11, CJC 3, and criminal statutes apply? [57] If the judges, 

trustee, and his attorneys are not a criminal racketeering gang, how can 

beneficiaries be protected from trustee's vexatious litigation that cover 

up his theft and prevent distribution of funds? 

ISSUE- [58] If court order does not name the motions being denied, is 

that an abuse of discretion (e.g. via failure to exercise discretion)? 

ISSUE- [59] Can court orders determine substantive issues that were 

never filed nor pleaded in court? [60] Can the court enter an order 
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regarding an issue on which there was no justiciable controversy {e.g. an 

unopposed distribution)? 

ISSUE- [61] Does a nonintervention clause free the PR from giving 

special notice and accountings requested by beneficiaries? 

ISSUE- [62] Can a supersedeas bond be required to stay a court ordered 

distribution? [63 Can the trustee stay a distribution without a showing of 

cause in court? 

ISSUE- [64]1s discovery, that commenced before an appeal, then 

stopped by the appeal of an interlocutory order? [65] Do CR 26, 27, 34, 

and 37 perpetuate production of documents during said interlocutory 

appeal? [66] Can the trustee block discovery if he failed to move for 

protection from discovery within 10 day of receiving a discovery request? 

[67] Does the sequence of discovery methods allow discovery to be 

blocked by a subsequent interlocutory appeal, e.g. the beneficiary started 

with a request for production of documents before proceeding with 

depositions? 

ISSUE- [67] Can the courts fine a litigator without stating the cause, 

purpose, or corrective measure required? COA 38243-1-11 and 44244-2-11 

fined indigent Guy $2,000 without stating the cause, purpose, or 

correction. [68] Can the court force an indigent to pay the fine before he 
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can file anymore motions? [69] Is that a violation of constitutional rights, 

due process and equal protection (e.g. under the 141
h Amendment). 

ARGUMENTS 

ISSUE- Can a party subject to a court order refrain from implementing 

the court order indefinitely, or forever, just because order did not contain 

a deadline date for implementation? COA 44244-2-11 said yes: 

"Further, the judicial order Guy cites is the trial court's granting of 
Gregg's motion to make a distribution, an order which does not 
require a distribution in any particular timeframe." 

Guy opposed because that is new law and new doctrine, which 

invalidates all court orders that do not carry an implementation deadline. 

It contradicted RCW 11.02.005(10), RCW 11.48.10, Estate of Wind, 5 and 

Folsom v. County of Spokane. 6 

ISSUE- What is the terminating case in testamentary trusts? Should the 

Supreme Court consider interlocutory issues excluded by COA 44244-2-11 

page limitations? Once the court allows an overlength brief, can the court 

arbitrarily limit the length thereby limiting the issues? Is the judiciary in 

league with local attorneys that form a racketeering gang which steals 

from estates? COA 44244-2-11 determined that court orders give the 

trustee permission to make a distribution, but the trustee does not have 

5 Estate of Wind v. Hendrickson, Wash. Supreme Ct., 32 Wn.2d 64 
6 Folsom v. County of Spokane, Ill Wn.2d 256, 263, 759 P.2d 1196 (1988) 
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to do so. Therefore, COA 44244-2-11 is not the terminating case because 

future distributions, lack of distributions, and attorney fees are subject to 

litigation. The reason there are so many issues is that lower court judges 

are corrupt racketeers intent on protecting their elected jobs and their 

criminal cronies including other judges, trustees, and trustee's attorneys. 

Corrupt judges sacrifice the law to protect other judges from the career 

threatening embarrassment of being reversed. Corrupt judges protect 

racketeering, larceny, and money laundering by trustees and trustee 

attorneys in exchange for election support and future jobs, business, and 

fees from big law firms. Judges denied every legal avenue pursued by 

Guy to find out the bank account balances of the trust when Gregg took 

over as trustee, and hence they denied Guy's constitutional right to know 

the true amount of his inheritance. The result was that corrupt judges 

violated dozens of statutes and rules, and overturned hundreds of 

precedent cases, which resulted in the long list of issues above. 

Washington State Supreme Court justices have shown themselves to be 

supporting members of the racketeering judges because they protect 

systematic theft from estates 

All of the listed issues were pleaded by Guy in the interlocutory 

COA cases as evidenced by Guy's pleadings in Clerk's Papers and by Guy's 

16 



initial petition for review in Supreme Court 91074-0 that was 345 pages 

long (mailed 12/02/2014). Case COA 44244-2-11 recognized cause for 

Guy's overlength brief, but forced Guy to reduce his brief to 125 pages 

(order dated 6/26/2013), Once the Court accepts an overlength brief or 

motion, then the Court should not limit the number overlength of pages. 

Case: "We note that this court gave Garrett permission to file his 
overlength brief; thus, terms for the length of the brief would be 
inappropriate, in any event." 
In re Samuel Christopher Garrett, 1997 Wash. App. LEXIS 640 

COA 44244-2-ll's arbitrary page length limitation gave no 

rationale for 125 pages and forced Guy to omit many interlocutory issues, 

arguments, statutes, cases, and evidence from the case. In the six 

previous Supreme Court cases in the Estate of Mettle, the Supreme Court 

did not grant any interlocutory review. Now, Supreme Ct 91704-0 is the 

latest case and the court is again denying Guy the right to present 

interlocutory issues which were arbitrarily excluded by COA 44244-2-ll's 

125 page limitation. 

However, the following rules and cases that require the court to 

try the issues on the merits rather than on page length. 

RAP 1.2 INTERPRETATION AND WAIVER OF RULES BY 
COURT (a) Interpretation. These rules will be liberally interpreted 
to promote justice and facilitate the decision of cases on the merits. 
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Weeks v. Chief of the Washington State Patrol, in the Supreme 
Court Of Washington 96 Wn.2d 893; 639 P.2d 732; 1982 Wash. 
LEXIS 1247 
Reichelt v. Raymark Industries, 52 Wn. App. 763; 764 P.2d 653; 
1988 Wash. App. LEXIS 614 

COA 44244-2-11 and Supreme Court contradicted cases that 

require the court to allow Guy to present all interlocutory issues: 

"Upon appeal from a final judgment, however, any interlocutory 
order will be reviewed pursuant to Rule on Appeal17, 34A Wn. (2d) 
24." Maybury v. City of Seattle, 336 P. 2d 878- Wash: Supreme Court, 
1st Dept. 1959 

• Estate of Spahi, 107 Wn. App. 763; 27 P.3d 1233; 2001 Wash. App. 
LEXIS 1740 at HN22 

• Humphrey Industries v. Clay Street Associates, Wash. Supreme Court, 
176 Wn.2d 662; 295 P.3d 231; 2013 Wash. LEXIS 141 

• Greene v. Rothschild, 68 Wn.2d 1; 414 P.2d 1013; 1966 Wash. LEXIS 
696 

• National Bank of Washington v. Equity Investors, Wash. Supreme Ct., 

83 Wn.2d 435; 518 P.2d 1072; 1974 Wash. LEXIS 92 

• Schroeder v. Excelsior Management Group, 177 Wn.2d 94; 297 P.3d 
677; 2013 Wash. LEXIS 152 

The Supreme Court 91074-0 is not bound by law of the case to 

perpetuate its own error in prohibiting Guy from presenting interlocutory 

issues excluded by COA 44244-2-ll's arbitrary page length limitation. 

RAP 2.5 Prior Appellate Court Decision. The appellate court may at 
the instance of a party review the propriety of an earlier decision 
of the appellate court in the same case and, where justice would 
best be served, decide the case on the basis of the appellate 
court's opinion of the law at the time of the later review. 86 
Wn.2d 1152. 
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This common sense formulation ofthe doctrine assures that an 

appellate court is not obliged to perpetuate its own error.~First Small Bus. 

Inv. Co. of Cal. v. Intercapital Corp. of Or., 108 Wn.2d 324, 333, 738 

P.2d 263 (1987). The Supreme Court should rule on every issue to 

prevent repetition and emulation of corrupt court procedures that 

habitually steal estates and inheritance. (Miller v. Badgley, 51 Wn. App. 

285, 753 P.2d 530 (1988); MacDonald v. Korum Ford, 80 Wn. App. 877, 

912 P.2d 1052 (1996).; Madden v. Foley, 83 Wn. App. 385,922 P.2d 

1364 (1996) 

ISSUE- Do resident aliens have a constitutional right to inheritance, and 

U.S. citizens do not? COA 44244-2-11 said resident aliens do and U.S 

citizens do not per Colbert's Estate.7 Guy opposed and said that U.S. 

citizens have a constitutional right to inheritance per Yang v. Kay. 8 

ISSUE- Are beneficiaries entitled of copies of all bank statements, 

checks, vouchers, trust documents, and to know the amount of their 

inheritance when the trustee took over? COA 44244-2-11 said no. Guy said 

yes per Estate of Brown.9 

7 Colbert's Estate, Supreme Court of Montana, 44 Mont. 259; 119 P. 791; 1911 Mont. 
LEXIS 95 
8 Ying v. Kay, Supreme Court of Wash, 174 Wash. 83; 24 P.2d 596; 1933 Wash. LEXIS 72 
9 Estate of Brown, Supreme Court, 20 Wn.2d 740; 150 P.2d 604; 1944 Wash. LEXIS 375, 
at HN2 
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ISSUE -Does the beneficiary have to commence a completely separate 

case in order to conduct discovery in the case currently before the court 

COA 44244-2-11 said yes. Guy said no per RCW 11.96A.l15(1), CR 26, CR 

27, CR 34, CR 37, Cook v. King County, 10 more cases than can be listed. 

ISSUE -Is a beneficiary entitled to discovery? COA 44244-2-11 said no. 

Guy said yes per RCW 11.96A.l15(1), CR 26, CR 27, CR 34, CR 37, Cook v. 

King County, 11 Estate of JACK DELGUZZI/2 and more cases than can be 

listed. 

ISSUE- Should the estate/trust bear the cost of litigation that is intended 

to benefit all of the beneficiaries? COA 44244-2-11 said no. Guy said yes 

per Estate of Black. 13 (See beneficiary John's declaration, CP 901- 903
14

). 

ISSUE- does income less than 125% of federal poverty level or receipt of 

food stamps qualify a litigant as indigent and waive court fees per GR 34? 

COA 44244-2-11 said no. Further Supreme Court 85871-3 said inheritance 

is not a fundamental liberty interest worthy of a waiver of court fees. 

Guy said yes per Jafar v. Webb. 15 And Supreme Court 91074-0 order said 

1° Cook v. King County, Wash. Court of Appeals, 9 Wn. App. 50, 510 P.2d 659 (1973) 
11 Cook v. King County, Wash. Court of Appeals, 9 Wn. App. 50, 510 P.2d 659 (1973) 
12 Estate of Jack DeiGuzzi, 2009 Wash. App. LEXIS 1626 

13 Estate of Black, 153 Wn.2d 152; 102 P.3d 796; 2004 Wash. LEXIS 920 
14 CP 901 - 903, Declaration of John Mettle, filed 12/01/2009 
15 Jafar v. Webb Case No. 87009-8, WA S.Ct., May. 23, 2013 
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yes, because it declared that Guy should proceed with his petition for 

review and that Guy's motion for GR 34 indigency was moot. Supreme 

Court 91070-0 should decide these issues in its published opinion. 

ISSUE- Can Superior court tax beneficiaries with the trustee's attorney 

fees expended during interlocutory appeals, even though said fees had 

been denied by COA's interlocutory orders? Superior Court Order (CP 

1751-1754) and COA 44244-2-11 said yes and deducted $24,430.87 from 

Guy's distribution. Guy said no per Brown's Estate.16 

ISSUE- Can the court ignore the second step required by the Lodestar

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