Received Washington State Supreme Court

JUL - 6 2015 E CPF Ronald R. Carpenter Clerk

NO. 91074-0

۰.

## SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

### NO. 44244-2-II

## COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION II OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

In re the Dorothy P. Mettle Trust

ANSWER TO 2<sup>ND</sup> SHORTENED PETITION FOR REVIEW

#### **EISENHOWER CARLSON PLLC**

By: David Petrich, WSBA #18711 1201 Pacific Avenue, Suite 1200 Tacoma, Washington 98402 Telephone: (253) 572-4500

Attorneys for Gregg Mettle, Personal Representative of the Estate of Dorothy P. Mettle and Trustee of the Dorothy P. Mettle Revocable Living Trust

----------------	-----	-----	------	---

## I. <u>RESTATEMENT OF THE CASE</u>

The Respondent, Gregg Mettle ("Gregg")<sup>1</sup>, is the Trustee of the Dorothy P. Mettle Revocable Living Trust ("Trust") and the Personal Representative of the Estate of Dorothy P. Mettle ("Estate") in the underlying Superior Court and Court of Appeals' matters. The restatement of the case and facts relevant to such are contained in the Restatement of Facts section, below.

## II. <u>RESTATEMENT OF THE ISSUES</u>

Guy Mettle ("Guy")<sup>2</sup> raises so many issues in his 2<sup>nd</sup> Shortened Petition for Review that it is impractical to address each of those issues in this Answer. The applicable issues arising from the Court of Appeals' unpublished decision in *In re: Estate of Dorothy P. Mettle*, No. 44244-2-II, filed June 24, 2014 (the "2014 Opinion") relate to the following orders/subject matters: (a) denial of Guy's motions to compel production of documents and perpetuate testimony; (b) determining Gregg did not act improperly with respect to distributions by the Trust and/or Estate including the timing of distributions, (c) the denial of Guy's request to

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The Mettle brothers, Gregg, Guy and John, are referred to by their first names throughout this brief. No disrespect is intended by this informal reference.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> See footnote #1.

require a supersedeas bond, (d) the dismissal of and/or failure to provide relief to Guy with respect to his motion for an accounting; (e) denial of Guy's motion for the recusal of the trial court judge and the Court of Appeals' judges; and (f) ordering an award of attorney fees to the Trust/ Estate from Guy's distribution with no award of attorney fees to Guy. The Court of Appeals properly decided each of these issues as set forth in the 2014 Opinion.

• • •

#### III. <u>RESTATEMENT OF FACTS</u>

The underlying case involves the estate of decedent Dorothy P. Mettle ("Estate"). Mrs. Mettle, a resident of Pierce County, Washington, executed her Last Will and Testament on September 15, 1997, and a First Codicil dated September 26, 2000 ("Will"). CP 4, 7-13.

Mrs. Mettle died on December 10, 2002. CP 4, CP 140. At the time of her death, Mrs. Mettle's gross estate consisted of assets held in her name and held in the name of her revocable trust, the Dorothy P. Mettle Revocable Living Trust ("Trust"), also dated September 15, 1997, and amended on September 26, 2000. CP 130. The combined value of the Trust and Estate at the time of her death was approximately \$954,614.00. CP 331. Mrs. Mettle is survived by three sons, Guy, Gregg and John, all of whom are equal beneficiaries of the Trust. CP 5, 7, 124. Dorothy's son, Gregg, was named as personal representative of the Estate. CP 11. Gregg was also named as the successor trustee of the Trust. CP 130. Mrs.

Mettle's Will provides that the Estate is to be administered without intervention of the court. CP 8.

• '

Immediately prior to her death, Mrs. Mettle's affairs were under the supervision of the guardianship court in Pierce County Superior Court Cause No. 00-4-01533-2. CP 330–333, 477. Gregg and his brother, John, were Mrs. Mettle's court-appointed co-guardians. CP 342, 477. Additionally, at the time Mrs. Mettle was declared incapacitated, Gregg became the acting successor Trustee of the Trust. CP 130, 478. All personal property in Mrs. Mettle's Estate was disposed of in the guardianship action. CP 336. The co-guardians' Final Report was approved on September 5, 2003. At the close of the guardianship, the Estate's only asset was a Columbia Bank account, and the only Trust asset was a Merrill Lynch account. CP 31-32.

On September 10, 2003, Gregg, by and through his attorneys, Eisenhower & Carlson and David B. Petrich, filed a Petition for an Order: 1. Admitting Will to Probate, 2. Appointing Personal Representative, and 3. Adjudicating Solvency of Estate. CP 16-18. Pursuant to the Court's Order appointing Gregg as personal representative, Gregg was granted non intervention powers. CP 17. Mrs. Mettle's Will directed that the assets in her Estate be transferred to the trustee and placed in the Trust. CP 8.

On October 6, 2004, seeking to complete the administration of the Estate, Gregg filed a Notice of Filing of Declaration of Completion of Probate as well as a Declaration of Completion of Probate. CP 33-34. Thereafter, on November 1, 2004, Guy filed a Petition for Accounting and

Approval of Fees challenging Gregg's proposed completion of probate and prolonging the administration and closure of the Estate. CP 40-41. As a result, the probate was not completed, and Gregg continued to serve as personal representative. CP 33.

Approximately one month later, in December of 2004, Gregg, as trustee, distributed from the Trust, \$600,000.00, or \$200,000.00 to each of the three beneficiaries. CP 328. Gregg directed the Merrill Lynch office in Tacoma to transmit Guy's \$200,000.00 distribution by mailing the distribution check to Guy at his 2783 Martin Road, #203, Columbus, Ohio address. CP 482, 539-40. This was the address to which Guy's attorney at the time, Beth Jensen, directed the check to be mailed. CP 541. Apparently, the distribution check did not reach Guy as the address provided was incorrect. *Id.* The distribution check mailed in December 2004, was never negotiated. *Id.* Gregg, by and through his attorney, Mr. Petrich, communicated three options for providing Guy with his distribution. *Id.* Eventually, Guy received the \$200,000.00 distribution check and negotiated it.

At that time, Mr. Petrich willingly worked with Guy's attorney, Ms. Jensen to provide the Merrill Lynch statements and other information reflecting the amounts held in the Trust as well as matters relating to the Trust and Estate. CP 539, 545-46, 548-51, 554-55.

During Gregg's administration of the Estate, two significant legal issues arose relating to the payment and potential payment of taxes from the Estate, causing Gregg to wait for their resolution before closing the Estate. The first issue involved Gregg's payment of estate taxes to the Department of Revenue in the amount of \$30,000.00. CP 26, 29, 31, 547.

Specifically, after payment of such taxes, attorney Petrich became aware that the Washington State Supreme Court granted direct review from the trial court to determine issues relating to the payment of estate taxes to the state, which impacted Mrs. Mettle's Estate. CP 547; *See Estate of Hemphill v. Washington State Department of Revenue*, 153 Wn.2d 544, 105 P.3d 391(2005). Ultimately, given the ruling in *Estate of Hemphill, supra,* in September of 2005, the Estate received a refund of estate taxes previously paid to the Department of Revenue in the amount of \$27,445.00. CP 52. 482, 539-41, 548.

The second legal issue delaying closure of the Estate involved Gregg's decision to wait until the statute of limitations had expired with respect to the decedent's individual federal income tax returns before making additional Trust distributions. CP 481. This statute of limitations expired on or about April 15, 2006. CP 481.

The most significant source of delay in closing the Estate and making all distributions from the Trust rested with Guy. From the time the court appointed Gregg as personal representative and trustee, three different attorneys entered notices of appearance (and subsequently notices of withdrawal) in the estate matter on Guy's behalf. Attorney Beth Jensen entered a Notice of Appearance on December 9, 2003, and a Notice of Intent to Withdraw on March 7, 2005. CP 23, 42-43. Attorney Terrence Posey entered a Notice of Appearance on June 14, 2005, and a Notice of Withdrawal on March 7, 2008. CP 46, 49-50. Finally, the Spencer Law Firm entered a Notice of Appearance on June 3, 2008, and withdrew pursuant to Court order on June 6, 2008. CP 295, 355-56.

Attorney Posey's declaration in support of his withdrawal, filed March 28, 2008, sheds light upon Guy's intractability in the proceedings.

Paragraph 3 of Mr. Posey's Declaration states:

•

Mr. Mettle and I had significant differences of opinion regarding strategy for most of the time I represented him. The Petition that he refers to in his Objection to my withdrawal was finished and given to him well over a year ago. However, we have disagreed on the attachments and exhibits to file with the Petition. Prior to my Notice of Withdrawal, the last contact that I had with Mr. Mettle was a telephone conference on July 9, 2007 in which I again explained my professional opinion to him regarding the Petition. He told me that he would consider it and get back to me. He did not contact me in any way between July 9, 2007 and my Notice of Withdrawal. He also has not made a payment on his bill for my services in 14 months.

CP 160-61 (underline added).

The record reflects Guy's pattern of retaining attorneys, not cooperating with his chosen counsel and prolonging the proceedings by filing with the court repetitive, unsupported and defamatory pleadings. Guy's actions caused extreme delay in resolving the Estate and Trust. CP 87-94, 101-103, 104-154, 282-284.

On March 10, 2008, Gregg filed a Petition for Order Approving Final Accounting and Decree of Distribution. CP 51-54. On that same date, attorney Petrich filed a Declaration of David B. Petrich Regarding Attorney Fees. CP 55-56. Thereafter, attorney Petrich filed a Revised Declaration of David B. Petrich Regarding Attorney Fees. CP 486-87. Attorney Petrich's Declaration(s) attach every billing statement detailing all of his work in relation to the guardianship, Estate and Trust as well as the details of his billable hourly rate. CP 57-84, 489-530.

Also on March 10, 2008, Gregg filed a Petition to Approve Trustee's Interim Accounting in the Trust case, Pierce County Superior Court Cause No. 08-4-00411-5. The Petition to Approve Trustee's Interim Accounting detailed the Trust account for the period December 10, 2002 through December 31, 2007. This Petition relating to the Trust reflects the following Trust activity and status:

Starting Balance:	\$888,792.22		
Disbursements:	(\$600,000.00)		
Appreciation:	\$92,824.24		
Additions:	\$ <u>12,368.35</u>		
Ending Balance:	\$393,984.81		

*Id.* The starting balance in the Trust reflects the figure reported as the ending balance in the Guardian's Final Report, which was approved by the Pierce County Superior Court in Cause No. 00-4-01533-2. *Id.*<sup>3</sup> Again, the disbursement amount of \$600,000.00 reflects the three \$200,000.00 disbursement checks sent to Gregg, John and Guy as Trust beneficiaries in December 2004. *Id.* The increase to the Trust of \$92,824.24 reflects

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Although Guy appealed the Guardian's Final Report to the Division II Court of Appeals, his appeal was dismissed on March 22, 2004 for lack of prosecution.

appreciation to the account, and the \$12,368.35 "addition" resulted from the transfer of Mrs. Mettle's Charles Schwab account into the Trust. *Id.* On March 31, 2008, the trial court consolidated Cause No. 08-4-00411-5 with Cause No. 03-4-01245-1. *Id.* 

Thereafter, on June 27, 2008, the Honorable Thomas Larkin heard the Personal Representative's Final Accounting and the Trustee's Interim Accounting. Verbatim Transcript of Proceedings (6/27/08). On that same date, Judge Larkin entered an Order Approving Final Account and Decree of Distribution ("Order Approving Final Account") and an Order and Decree Approving Trustee's Interim Accounting ("Order Approving Trustee's Interim Accounting"). CP 626-628; 629-630.

The Order Approving Final Account ordered that the balance of the property in the Estate be delivered to Gregg as Trustee of the Dorothy P. Mettle Revocable Living Trust. CP 626-628. The Order Approving Trustee's Interim Accounting approved the interim accounting and ordered that the Trustee could consolidate all trust assets into a noninterest bearing account at Merrill Lynch. CP 629-630. The Order Approving Trustee's Interim Accounting also provides that the interim distribution may be delayed until either the statutory period for appealing the Order had expired or any appeal of the Order had been resolved. *Id*.

Guy filed additional motions, all of which the trial court denied. Guy appealed the trial court's decisions and the Court of Appeals affirmed these decisions. *See In re: Estate of Mettle*, No. 38243-1-II, filed March 29, 2011 (the "2011 Opinion"). Regarding the additional motions, these included the October 2, 2008, Motion for Recusal of Honorable Judge Thomas Larkin, as well as Guy's December 5, 2008, Motion to Compel. In 2010, Guy sought an order of indigency in connection with his appeal, and alleged that Gregg engaged in kidnapping, elder abuse, extortion, civil fraud, bank fraud, check fraud, and perjury" in order to steal Guy's inheritance. CP 905. Guy submitted records showing that he received food stamps from the State of Ohio to support his claim of indigency and the trial court denied his motion.

, ۰

•

In 2011, Guy filed a motion seeking an accounting from the Trust and Estate to include attorney billing records. At the hearing, Guy admitted that Gregg provided him (and he received) all of the information he sought. The trial court determined that Guy had "withdrawn" his motion and entered an Order Recognizing Guy Mettle's Withdrawal of his Motion for Accounting and Billing Information" to which Guy objected. CP 1185-86.

In 2012, Gregg sought the trial court's approval to wind up the Trust including his final accounting, administrative and attorney fees and a reduction in Guy's final distribution, which the trial court approved. Guy's "second" appeal followed.

It should be noted that the record reflects and Guy does not deny that throughout the course of the litigation, he never filed a judicial proceeding controverting specific issues relating to the Trust or Estate.

When litigating in the Court of Appeals, Guy also sought the recusal of Judges Armstrong, Quinn-Brintnall, and Penoyar. The 2014

9

Opinion reflects that the Court of Appeals affirmed the trial court's decisions, denied Guy's request for attorney fees on appeal, and granted the Trust/Estate's request for an award of attorney fees. *See* 2014 Opinion. The Court of Appeals ordered that the Trust/Estate's award of attorney fees may be deducted from any distribution due to Guy. *Id.* 

•

Finally, in its 2014 Opinion, the Court of Appeals refused to consider numerous issues that were decided in Guy's prior appeal and disposed of in its 2011 Opinion because such questions constituted the law of the case. *See In re: the Estate of Dorothy Mettle*, No. 44244-2-II (the "2014 Opinion").

#### IV. ARGUMENT

## 1. <u>Guy fails to meet the requirements for discretionary review</u> in the Supreme Court.

Guy's 2nd Shortened Petition for Review cites to no fewer than sixty-nine "issues" allegedly relating to the 2014 Opinion for which he seeks review. However, Guy fails to present reasoned argument and relevant law demonstrating any of the criteria required for this Court's acceptance of review under applicable Rules of Appellate Procedure. In fact, many of the "issues" Guy raises were the subject of the 2011 Opinion and are not the subject of the instant 2<sup>nd</sup> Shortened Petition for Review. These include, but are not limited to, the issues as to when a beneficiary can present interlocutory issues to the Supreme Court, whether the trustee, attorneys and the judges comprise a racketeering gang that steal from

estates and fleece beneficiaries, and damages in criminal profiteering

cases. See 2<sup>nd</sup> Shortened Petition for Review, pp. 10, 13.

As this Court is well aware, RAP 13.4(b)(1) - (4) sets forth the

criteria for seeking review of a Court of Appeals' decision. In this case,

Guy's 2<sup>nd</sup> Shortened Petition for Review fails to meet the standards

required by this Rule as follows.

• •

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